
 

 

 

 

 

Prosser Memorial Health 

Board of Commissioners 

 

Board Packet 

September 29, 2022 

 

 

 
  



September 27, 2022 Board of Commissioners Work Session Agenda 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS – WORK SESSION 
TUESDAY, September 27, 2022   

6:00 PM - WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM 
 AGENDA  

 
COMMISSIONERS:       STAFF: 
Stephen Kenny, Ph.D.       Craig Marks, CEO 
Sharon Dietrich, M.D.       Merry Fuller, CNO/COO 
Glenn Bestebreur       David Rollins, CFO 
Susan Reams                       Shannon Hitchcock, CCO 
Keith Sattler        Kristi Mellema, CQO 
Brandon Bowden                                                                                        Bryon Dirkes, CHRO 
Neilan McPartland                                  Dr. Brian Sollers, CMO 
  
        
                                 GUESTS:     Paul Kramer, Project Director, NV5 
                                                                                                           Gary Hicks, Financial Advisor 
                                                                                                           Brandon Potts, Bouten Construction 
                                                                                                           Nick Gonzalez, Bouten Construction 
                                                                                                            

                   
  I.  CALL TO ORDER 
                   

 
 II.   SERVICES 
        A.  Replacement Facility Update                         

            1. Design Updates                                                                                                      
                   a. CN (Attachment D)                                                                                                        NV5 
                   b. SVID                                                                                                                                  NV5 

      c. DOH/USDA/City of Prosser Reviews                                                               NV5 
                   d. Furniture Fair                                                                                                                  NV5 
                      
            2. Construction/Schedule/Budget                                                                                                                  
                   a. Value Engineering Update (Attachment E)                                                             Bouten/All 
                   b. MACC (Attachment F)                                                                                                 Bouten/NV5 
                   c. GC/CM Contracts A133 (Attachment G), A201(Attachment H)                          NV5/Bouten 
                   d. Schedule (Attachment I)                                                                                            NV5/Bouten    
                   e. Project Budget (Attachment J) (Attachment K)                                                     NV5                                   
            
 
       

 
  



September 27, 2022 Board of Commissioners Work Session Agenda 

 
           3. Financing                                                                                                                                                   Gary 
 a. USDA (Attachment L) (Attachment M) 

                b. Construction Loan 

                c. Equipment Lease 
 
       B. Capital Equipment Request 
             1. Radiology Equipment for the Replacement Facility                                                         Merry 
                  (Attachment N) (Attachment O)  
 
 
 III. Executive Session              
      

                     A.   RCW 42.30.110 (l) To consider proprietary or confidential nonpublished information related to the     
                development, acquisition or implementation of state purchased health care services as provided in RCW  
                 41.05.26 

 
                     B.   RCW 42.30.110 (g) To evaluate the qualifications of an applicant for public employment or to review the  

                performance of a public employee.   
 
 
        
  IV.  ADJOURN  



September 29, 2022, Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda  

   
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

THURSDAY, September 29, 2022     
6:00 PM, WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM 

  AGENDA 
 

COMMISSIONERS:       STAFF: 
Stephen Kenny, Ph.D.       Craig Marks, CEO 
Sharon Dietrich, M.D.       Merry Fuller, CNO/COO 
Glenn Bestebreur       David Rollins, CFO 
Susan Reams        Shannon Hitchcock, CCO 

              Keith Sattler                       Kristi Mellema, CQO  
              Brandon Bowden       Bryon Dirkes, CHRO 
              Neilan McPartland                                                                                                 Dr. Brian Sollers, CMO      
                                   
                    
   I.  CALL TO ORDER 
       A.  Pledge of Allegiance 
   
 
  II.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
 III.  APPROVE AGENDA 
        Action Requested – Agenda 
 
 
 IV.  CONSENT AGENDA 
        Action Requested – Consent Agenda 

A. Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes for August 25, 2022, and Special Board Meeting Minutes for 
September 08, 2022.    

       B.   Payroll and AP Vouchers #167133 through #167839 dated 08-18-22 through 09-21-22 in the amount of 
$7,808,752.65; Board Policies 100.0033-100.0036 (Attachment AA-DD); Surplus Items Resolution #1070 (4) 
Sleeper Sofas. 

                   
 V.  MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT 
       A.  Medical Staff Report and Credentialing       Dr. Clifford    
             Action Requested - Advancement from Provisional 
             1. Advancement from Provisional           

Peter Himmel, MD – Locum Tenens privileges in Emergency Medicine effective October 1, 2022, through 
March 31, 2024. 

 
William Lou, MD – Telemedicine Staff privileges in Neurology effective October 1, 2022, through March 31, 
2024. 

 
 



September 29, 2022, Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda  

 
 

          2. New Appointment 
               Action Requested – New Appointment and Requested Clinic Privileges 
               Monroe Whitman lll, MD – Provisional/Locum Tenens Staff with requested privileges in General Surgery 

effective October 1, 2022, through March 31, 2023. 
 

James Wallace, MD – Provisional/Locum Tenens Staff with requested privileges in Emergency Medicine effective 
October 1, 2022, through March 28, 2023. 

 
Soo Young Kwon, MD – Provisional/Telemedicine staff with requested privileges in Neurology effective October 
1, 2022, through March 31, 2023. 

 
         3.  Reappointment 
  Action Requested – Reappointment and Requested Clinical Privileges 

Stephen Burton, MD – Reappointment to the Telemedicine Staff with requested privileges in Neurology 
effective October 1, 2022, through September 31, 2024. 
 
Aixa Espinosa-Morales, MD – Reappointment to Telemedicine Staff with requested privileges in Neurology 
effective October 1, 2022, through September 31, 2024. 
 
George Lopez, MD – Reappointment to Telemedicine Staff with requested privileges in Neurology effective 
October 1, 2022, through September 31, 2024. 

 
            
    
VI.   SERVICES 
         A.  Bouten MACC- (Maximum Allowable Construction Cost) (Attachment F)                                              Craig 
               Action Requested – Bouten MACC at a cost not to exceed $74,817,419. 
 

  B. GC/CM Contract-(Attachment G) (Attachment H)                                                                                       Craig 
               Action Requested- GC/CM contract-Bouten Construction 
      
         C.  Contract Signing-MACC and GC/CM Contract                                                                                         Craig/Bill Bouten 
               
         D. Radiology Equipment-GE MRI and CT at a cost not to exceed $2,028,830.                                              Merry 
               (Attachment N) (Attachment O)       
               Action Requested-Radiology Equipment-GE MRI and CT 
 
 
 
 
VII. FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP 
 
         A.  Review Financial Reports for August 2022 (Attachment V)                                                              David 
               Action Requested – Financial Reports 
 

  B.  Replacement Facility Project Budget (Attachment J) (Attachment K)                                                     Craig/David 
               Action Requested-Replacement Facility Total Project cost not to exceed $112,048,033. 
 
         C.  Board Resolution #1071 (Attachment M)                                                                                                     Craig/David  
               Action Requested-Board Resolution #1071-Project Financing                    
 



September 29, 2022, Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda  

 
 
 
 
   
 
 VIII.  Employee Development 
 
         A.  Employee Inflation/Retention Incentive- 3.5% (excluding Leadership and Providers) (Attachment GG)  Craig                                                                                             
               Action Requested-Employee Inflation Retention Incentive at a total cost not to exceed $648,879 (3.5%).                
 
IX.  QUALITY 
 
         A.  Legislative and Political Updates                                                                                                Commissioner Bestebreur 
 
         B.   CEO/Operations Report                                Craig  
 
  
  X.  ADJOURN 
 
  
 
 
  
   
 
  



 

 

 
PMH 

Board of Commissioners 
Work Plan – FY2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
January 
 
 

 

QUALITY: 

• Review/Approve 2022 Strategic Plan 
and 2022 Patient Care Scorecards 

• Sign Financial Disclosure and Conflict 
of Interest Statements 

• Approve 2022 Risk Management and 
Quality Assurance Plans 

• Select and Approve Board Officers 

• Review Board Committee structure 
and membership 

 
SERVICES: 

• Approve acquisition of surgical 
equipment 

• Approve radiologist contracts 

• Approve Construction Loan 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review 2021 Employee Engagement 
Survey Results 

• Review 2021 Medical Staff 
Engagement Survey Results 

 
QUALITY: 

• Review Board Self-Evaluation 
 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Review semi-annual financial 
performance report for PMH Clinics 

 
SERVICES: 
     Replacement Facility Update 

• Construction Loan Schedule Update 
 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
February SERVICES: 

• Approve construction mini-MACC 

• Approve construction documents 
 

QUALITY: 

• Approve 2022 Board Action Plan 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review and Approve 2022 Leadership 
Incentive Compensation Program 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Attend AHA Governance Conference  
 
PATIENT LOYALTY: 

• Patient Loyalty Summary report 

• Review Patient Engagement Plan 
 
SERVICES: 

Replacement Facility Update:  

• Construction Documents 

• Mini-MACC 

• Schedule 

March QUALITY: 

• Review/Approve Board Polices 

• Approve 2022 Corporate Compliance 
Plan 

• Approve 2022 Infection Prevention 
Control Plan 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT 

• Review and Approve 2022 Leadership 
Incentive Compensation Program 

 
MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT: 

• Support Providers’ Day Celebration 
 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Accept 2021 Audit Report 
 
SERVICES: 

• Approve the MACC / GMP for the 
new facility 

 
 
 

PATIENT LOYALTY: 

• Review 2021 Utilization Review 
Performance 
 

QUALITY: 

• Review 2021 Corporate Compliance 
Report  

• Review 2021 Infection Prevention 
Summary 
 

 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review Employee Performance 
Report 

• Review the Communications 
Calendar 
 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Presentation of the 2021 Audit 
Report by Auditors 

• Capital Campaign Update 
 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
PATIENT LOYALTY 

• Approve the 2022 Utilization Review 
Plan 

 
 
 

SERVICES: Replacement Facility Update 

• MCAA / GMP 

• USDA Update 

• Budget 

April QUALITY: 

• Approve 2022 Community Benefits 
Report 

 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT 

• Conduct CEO Evaluation 
 

SERVICES: 

• Approve the MACC / GMP for the 
new facility 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SERVICES: Replacement Facility Update 

• MCAA / GMP 

• USDA Update 

• Budget 
QUALITY: 

• Strategic & Patient Care Score Cards 

• Review 2021 Community Benefits 
Report 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review 2021 Leadership Performance 
(LEM) 

• Review Employee Engagement Plan 

• Review the Communications 
Calendar 
 

MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review 2021 FPPE/OPPE Summary 
 

PATIENT LOYALTY: 

• Review Interpreter Services Plan 

• Call Center Update 
 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
May EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Support Hospital Week 
 

SERVICES: 

• Replacement Facility Update 
 
MEDICAL STAFF 

• Medical Staff Engagement Plan 
 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Employee Retirement Update 
 

PATIENT LOYALTY: 

• Review Customer Service Program 
 
 

June QUALITY: 

• Review/Approve Board Polices 

• Approve 2021 CAH Annual Report 
 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Approve 2022 Cost Report 
 

 

QUALITY: 

• Report 2022 Q1 Utilization Review 
 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review Leader Assessment and 
Development Program 
 

SERVICES: 

• Marketing Update 

• PMH Telehealth Update 
 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Accounting Software Update 
 

July MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT: 

• Attend BOC, Medical Staff and 
Leadership Engagement Activity 

 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Approve Single Audit 
 

SERVICES: 

• Replacement Facility Update 
MEDICAL STAFF 

• Review PMH Clinic productivity 
 
 

QUALITY: 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
 

 
 

• Quality Committee Report 

• Strategic & Patient Care Score Cards 

• Board Judiciary Responsibilities 
 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Human Resources Update 

• Review Leadership and Exempt Wage 
Scales 

 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Review Semi-Annual Financial 
Performance Report for PMH Clinics 

• Foundation Update 
 

August EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Attend end of summer Engagement 
Activity for BOC, Medical Staff, and 
all staff 

 

SERVICES: 

• Replacement Facility Update 
 
 
 
 
 
 

September QUALITY: 

• Review/Approve Board Polices 
 

 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review Employee Benefit Changes 

• Review Leadership Development 
Activities 

 
SERVICES: 

• Replacement Facility update 
 
PATIENT LOYALTY: 

• Nurse Educator Update 

October  QUALITY: 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
• Conduct 2023 Strategic Planning  

• Strategic & Patient Care Score Cards 
 
EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review Leadership Accountability 
Resource Tools 

PATIENT LOYALTY: 

• Patient Loyalty Summary 
 

November FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Approve Property Tax 
Request for County Commissioners 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

QUALITY: 

• iVantage Update 
 
SERVICES: 

• Review draft 2023 Strategic Plan; 
2023 Marketing and IT Plans; and 
Medical Staff Model/2023 Provider 
Recruitment Plan 

• Replacement Facility Update 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review Non-exempt (union) 
performance evaluation template 
 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Review draft 2023 Budget 
 

December QUALITY: 

• Complete Board Self-Evaluations 

• Review/Approve Board Polices 

• Approve the 2023 Environment of 
Care Plan 

 
 
 

QUALITY: 

• Review the 2022 Environment of 
Care Plan 
 

 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
SERVICES: 

• Approve 2023 Strategic Plan; 2023 
Marketing and IT Plans; and Medical 
Staff Model/2023 Provider 
Recruitment Plan 

 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Approve 2023 Operating and Capital 
Budgets 

• Banking relationship Selection 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Attend holiday celebration 
 

 



                       2022 -  Patient Care Scorecard
Major Goal Areas & Indicators 2022 Goal Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 2022 YTD 2021 2020

Quality

Left Without Being Seen <0.80% 2.02% 1.47% 0.88% 2.25% 2.97% 3.88% 2.89% 5.09% 2.79% 1.47% 0.80%

Median Admit Decision Time to ED Departure Time for Admitted Patients <44 min 53             56             51             51             45             51             53             63                 53             60 70

Median Time from ED Arrival to Departure for Discharged ED Patients <107 min 109           115           114           114           110           134           128           128               119           117 128

Severe Preeclamptic Mothers:  Timely Treatment Rate >90.00% 42.86% 57.14% 86.21% 60.00% 84.62% 90.91% 88.89% 100.00% 70.80% N/A N/A

All-Cause Unplanned 30 Day Inpatient Readmissions <2.70% 10.61% 2.74% 4.92% 3.77% 5.45% 9.09% 5.63% 6.45% 5.98% 5.80% 3.80%

Sepsis - Early Management Bundle >94.40% 100.00% 0.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 96.00% 94.40% 72.73%

Healthcare Associated Infection Rate per 100 Inpatient Days <0.07% 0.00% 0.00% 0.57% 0.00% 0.00% 0.45% 0.00% 0.00% 0.12% 0% 0.29%

Diabetes Management - Outpatient A1C>9 or missing result  <21.89% 22.40% 24.19% 24.53% 21.32% 22.32% 23.35% 26.83% 22.76% 23.45% 21.89% 27.61%

Medication Reconciliation Completed >90.00% 96.30% 94.74% 90.74% 92.00% 88.00% 85.00% 76.67% 81.67% 87.90% 46% 47.15%

Turnaround time of 30 minutes or less for STAT testing <30 min 22.0         21.0         21.0         21.0         19.0         19.0         18.0         19.0             20.0         38 37.5

Median Time to ECG for Patients Presenting to the ED with Chest Pain < 6.3 min 5.0            3.0            5.0            5.0            4.0            4.0            5.0            3.0                4.3            6.3 7

Surgical Site Infection <0.19% 0.00% 0.59% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.05% 0.19% 0.25%

Bar Code Scanning:  Medication Compliance >93.50% 94.91% 95.77% 95.43% 95.00% 94.54% 93.76% 91.55% 93.34%     94.29% 93.50% 98.90%

Bar Code Scanning:  Patient Compliance >94.70% 96.42% 95.81% 96.17% 96.16% 95.95% 94.83% 92.35% 93.55%     95.16% 94.70% N/A

*Overall Quality Performance Benchmark (iVantage) >61 61             61             36             36             36             36             36             36                 36             61 53

*Falls with Injury <2 -           -           -           -           -           1               -           -               1               3 2

Green at or above Goal  (4)

Yellow within 10% of Goal  (2)

Red More than 10% below Goal  (0)



                               2022 -  Strategic Plan Scorecard
Major Goal Areas & Indicators 2022 Goal Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 2022 YTD 2021 Avg 2020 Avg

Patient Loyalty

IP - "Would Recommend" >93.1% 94.8% 92.4% 91.7% 92.9% 90.5% 96.4% 79.2% 90.8% 91.1% 93.1% 87.9%

ED - "Would Recommend" >84.0% 83.9% 81.7% 76.4% 88.0% 88.8% 90.7% 67.7% 85.2% 88.1% 84.0% 81.4%

Acute Care - "Would Recommend" >91.8% 90.9% 94.4% 87.5% 94.4% 87.5% 91.7% 79.2% 85.0% 89.0% 91.8% 84.1%

OB - "Would Recommend" >93.6% 99.0% 100.0% 97.7% 100.0% 88.9% 100.0% 75.0% 100.0% 95.7% 93.6% 92.3%

Outpatient Surgery - "Would Recommend" >96.6% 100.0% 100.0% 97.2% 97.7% 94.4% 95.3% 98.5% 91.4% 95.6% 96.6% 89.8%

Clinic - "Would Recommend" >91.0% 92.8% 97.5% 91.7% 97.6% 91.8% 94.3% 86.8% 90.6% 92.7% 91.0% 87.3%

Outpatient - "Would Recommend" >94.1% 98.1% 96.1% 93.5% 96.0% 96.0% 94.8% 94.5% 90.6% 94.8% 94.1% 88.1%

Composite Score >92.9% 95.7% 95.2% 94.4% 94.1% 93.8% 93.7% 93.2% 94.0% 93.4% 92.9% N/A

Medical Staff Development

Medical Staff Turnover <10% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 4% 0% 1% 5% 12% 0.2%

Prosser Specialty Clinic Visits 1,352         1,386          1,429        1,617        1,428        1,366        1,422        1,272        1,681        1,450        1,318        954           

Benton City Clinic Visits 868            775             650           822           657           870           730           718           899           765           732           837           

Prosser RHC Clinic Visits 1,291         1,063          1,111        1,206        1,106        1,211        1,122        1,152        1,398        1,171        1,227        1,226        

Grandview Clinic Visits 969            1,055          833           1,021        873           986           960           904           1,065        962           778           589           

Women's Health Center  679            508             600           660           533           611           708           554           648           603           602           601           

*# of Active Medical Staff >51 52 53 53 54 55 54 55 54 54 51             45             

Employee Development

403(B) Participation Rate >98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 99% 98% 98% 46%

Average Recruitment Time (days) <21 19 26 40 11 15 19 22 17.5 21             21             32             

# of Open Positions (Vacancies) <23 32 28 35 31 32 39 39 29 33             32             29             

Hours of Overtime - Overtime/Total Hours Worked <4.5% 6.8% 5.3% 4.9% 6.0% 6.3% 6.1% 8.2% 7.1% 6.3% 6.1% 5.9%

Agency - Cost/Total Labor <7.7% 6.2% 10.6% 6.9% 6.9% 5.7% 7.9% 7.7% 10.5% 7.8% 7.7% 7.6%

Turnover Rate <0.6% 0.6% 1.2% 0.9% 0.9% 0.9% 1.2% 0.6% 0.0% 0.8% 0.9% 0.6%

Timely Evaluations >71.8% 95.1% 85.0% 84.2% 93.0% 79.0% 80.0% 81.0% 78.0% 84.4% 71.8% 70.2%

Education Hours/FTE >2.15 0.64            1.33          1.39          0.95          0.68          0.75          0.44          1.05          0.90          1.05          1.22          

New Hire (Tenure) < 1 year <10% 0.6% 0.6% 0% 0.6% 0.3% 0.3% 1.4% 0.3% 0.5% 10% 0%

* Lost Workdays due to On-the-Job Injuries <10.25 11 7 7 0 0 6.3 13 15 7               19.49       10.25       

Quality

ED Encounters - Left Without Being Seen <0.8% 2.0% 1.5% 0.9% 2.3% 3.0% 3.9% 2.9% 5.1% 2.7% 1.4% 0.8%

*Falls with Injury <2 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 3               2               

Healthcare Associated Infection Rate per 100 Inpatient Days <0.1% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.0% 0.3%

All-Cause Unplanned Readmissions within 30 Days <2.7% 10.6% 2.7% 4.9% 3.7% 5.5% 9.1% 5.6% 6.5% 6.1% 6.1% 3.8%

Diabetes Management - Outpatient A1C>9 or missing result <21.88% 22.40% 24.19% 24.53% 21.32% 22.32% 23.35% 26.83% 22.76% 23.46% 21.88% 27.61%

Services

ED Visits 1,083         1,287          949           1,138        1,246        1,448        1,419        1,384        1,375        1,281        1,105        805           

Inpatient Admissions 96               123             98             115           102           89             120           121           123           111           116           83             

OB Deliveries 50               47               41             61             46             41             50             57             55             50             49             41             

Surgeries and Endoscopies 187            162             170           268           274           288           337           284           331           264           179           101           

Diagnostic Imaging Procedures 2,851         2,462          2,619        3,134        2,915        2,981        3,091        2,691        3,125        2,877        2,992        2,280        

Lab Procedures 14,000       14,139       13,806     14,818     13,359     15,075     14,738     13,972     16,271     14,522     14,327     11,768     

Adjusted Patient Days 1,900         1,627          1,819        2,016        1,838        2,127        2,461        2,502        2,545        2,117        1,697        1,393        

Therapy Visits 1,651         1,225          1,391        1,542        1,339        1,420        1,701        1,540        2,859        1,627        1,453        1,314        

Outpatient Special Procedures Visits 325            241             221           332           249           277           306           364           389           297           324           247           

Financial Performance

Net Days in Accounts Receivable 50               55               58             55             56             55             55             55             55             55             51             63             

*Total Margin 6.90% 5.2% 13.6% 13.3% 11.2% 5.2% 16.8% 7.4% 23.6% 12.6% 18.40% 4.50%

Net Operating Revenue/FTE 19,431$    17,959$     18,695$   21,800$   19,651$   20,465$   21,737$   18,317$   23,184$   20,226$   20,682$   17,191$   

Labor as % of net Revenue 56.30% 63.18% 52.36% 48.39% 62.85% 60.40% 50.97% 59.42% 45.01% 55.32% 57.00% 61.30%

Operating Expense/FTE 18,177$    17,959$     16,155$   17,591$   17,598$   19,469$   17,756$   17,086$   17,873$   17,686$   16,940$   15,891$   

*Days Cash on Hand 109            142             150           154           150           148           152           154           161           161           155           183           

Commercial % 28.60% 29.90% 30.90% 31.80% 31.70% 31.40% 31.60% 31.60% 31.30% 31.30% 29.00% 29.00%

Total Labor Expense/Total Expense 60.20% 60.73% 60.33% 59.41% 62.99% 62.87% 60.43% 62.50% 58.03% 60.91% 61.00% 61.30%

Green at or above Goal 

Yellow within 10% of Goal

Red More than 10% below Goal

*Cumulative Total - goal is year end number



 

BOARD WORK SESSION                                                                    August 23, 2022                                              WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT 
 

STAFF PRESENT GUESTS   COMMUNITY        
MEMBERS 

• Dr. Steve Kenny                        

• Keith Sattler  

• Glenn Bestebreur 

• Susan Reams 

• Brandon Bowden 

• Sharon Dietrich, M.D. 

• Neilan McPartland 

• Craig Marks, CEO 

• Merry Fuller, CNO/COO 

• David Rollins, CFO 

• Shannon Hitchcock, CCO 

• Kristi Mellema, CCO 

• Bryon Dirkes, CHRO 

• Dr. Brian Sollers 

• Paul Kramer, NV5 

• Kurt Broeckelmann, bcDG 

• Adam Trumbour, Senior Project       
Manager, NV5 

• Gary Hicks, Financial Advisor 

• Brandon Potts, Vice President- 
Bouten Construction 

None 

AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION FOLLOW-UP 

 I.   CALL TO ORDER Meeting was called to order by 
Commissioner Kenny at 6:00 p.m. 

None. None. 

II.    Public Comment  None. None. 

III.  SERVICES DISCUSSION ACTION FOLLOW-UP 

        A.  Replacement Facility  
              Update 

 
 

   

    1. Design Updates 
         a. MDNS/SEPA 

(Attachment E) 
         b. SVID 
         c. DOH/USDA/City of 

Prosser Reviews 
 

Adam reviewed progress being made on 
the MDNS and with SVID. Kurt provided a 
brief update on all regulatory reviews. 
 

None. None. 

                2.  Construction/ 
                      Schedule/Budget 

a. Bid Process 
Update    

Brandon provided an update on the bid 
process with one day to go. The GC/CM 
contracts are still being negotiated and 
will not be ready for the August Board 
Meeting. 

None.  The Board will be 
asked to approve 
the GC/CM 
contracts with 
Bouten 



b. GC/CM Contracts 
A133 
(Attachment G) 
A201 
(Attachment H)   
 

 
 
 
 
 

Construction 
A133, A201 at the 
September Board 
Meeting. 

c. Initial MACC 
(Attachment JJ), 
(Attachment K) 
(Attachment L) 

d.  Schedule 
(Attachment D) 
Budget 
(Attachment M) 
(Attachment N) 

Brandon reviewed the concept of an Initial 
MACC and how it can save PMH money. 
Paul reviewed a draft schedule and budget 
for the project. 
 
 
 
 
 

None. The Board will be 
asked to approve 
the Initial MACC 
at the August 
Board Meeting. 

                3.  Financing      
 

a. USDA 
b. Equipment Lease 
c. Construction Loan 

Gary provided an update on all financing 
activities including the USDA, construction 
loan and an equipment lease. 

None.       None. 

        B.  Capital Equipment 
Requests 

            1. Family Birthplace Sofa 
Sleepers (Attachment P) 

Merry Fuller and Craig Marks reviewed the 
capital equipment acquisition request-
Family Birthplace (4) Sofa Sleepers at a 
cost not to exceed $28,303.29. 

None. The Board will be 
asked to approve 
the capital 
equipment 
acquisition 
request-Family 
Birthplace (4) Sofa 
Sleepers at the 
August Board 
Meeting. 

VI. ADJOURN 

There being no further regular business to attend to, Commissioner Kenny adjourned the meeting at 7:42 p.m. 

 

 



 

 

 

        BOARD MEETING                                                                                  August 25, 2022,                                                WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM 

  COMMISSIONERS PRESENT STAFF PRESENT                         MEDICAL STAFF                                              GUESTS 

• Steve Kenny Ph.D. 

• Glenn Bestebreur  

• Susan Reams 

• Keith Sattler 

• Sharon Dietrich, M.D. 

• Neilan McPartland (absent) 

• Brandon Bowden 

• Craig Marks, CEO 

• Merry Fuller, CNO/COO  

• David Rollins, CFO 

• Shannon Hitchcock, CCO 

• Kristi Mellema, CCQO 

• Bryon Dirkes, CHRO 

• Dr. Brian Sollers   

              AGENDA                                                                                                                                                              DISCUSSION                                    ACTION      FOLLOW-UP 

   I.    Call to Order  Meeting was called to order by Commissioner 
Kenny at 6:00 p.m. 

    

      A. Pledge of Allegiance        

 II.  Public Comment None.  None. None. 

III.  Approve Agenda 
 

None. Commissioner Sattler made a Motion to 
approve the July 28, 2022, Agenda.  The 
Motion was seconded by Commissioner 
Dietrich and passed with 5 in favor, 0 
opposed.                 

None. 

IV.  APPROVE CONSENT 
       AGENDA  
      A. Board of Commissioners     
           Meeting Minutes for 
           July 28, 2022. 
       
 
 

None. Commissioner Dietrich made a Motion to 
approve the Consent Agenda. The Motion 
was seconded by Commissioner Reams           
and passed with 6 in favor, 0 opposed.  

None. 



 

 

      B. Payroll & AP Vouchers  
       #166480 through 
      #167132 dated 07.21.22. 

        through 08.17.22 in the     
amount of $6,446,637.88. 

 

V.  MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT                                 DISCUSSION                                                                     ACTION                                       FOLLOW-UP 

     A.    Medical Staff Report     
and Credentialing 

 
 
 

  None. 

1. Advancement from 
Provisional 

Dr. Brian Sollers presented the following providers 
for Advancement from Provisional: 
 

             
Jayme Thompson, DO – Active Staff privileges in 
Family Medicine effective September 1, 2022, 
through February 28, 2024. 
Michael Chen, MD – Telemedicine Staff privileges 
in Neurology effective September 1, 2022, through 
February 28, 2024. 
 Mohammad Hirzallah, MD – Telemedicine 
privileges in Neurology effective September 1. 2022 
through February 28, 2024.   
 
 
 

A Motion to approve the Advancement from 
Provisional Appointment and requested 
Clinical Privileges that were reviewed and 
recommended by the Department Chair, the 
Credentialing Committee and Medical 
Executive Committee for the following 
providers was made by Commissioner 
Dietrich and seconded by Commissioner 
Reams.  The Motion passed with 6 in favor, 
0 opposed. 

• Jayme Thompson, DO 

• Michael Chen, MD 

• Mohammad Hirzallah, MD 
 

None. 

                      2.  New Appointments           
 

Dr. Brian Sollers presented the following New 
Appointments:   
 

  Jeffrey Johnson, MD – Provisional/Locum Tenens 
Staff with requested privileges in General Surgery 
effective September 1, 2022, through February 28, 
2023. 

 

A Motion to approve the New Appointments 
and requested Clinical Privileges that were 
reviewed and recommended by the 
Department Chair, the Credentialing 
Committee and Medical Executive 
Committee for the following providers was 
made by Commissioner Reams and 
seconded by Commissioner Bowden.  The 
Motion passed with 6 in favor, 0 opposed. 

None. 



 

 

Byron Wright, MD – Provisional/Locum Tenens 
Staff with requested privileges in General Surgery 
effective September 1, 2022, through February 28, 
2023. 
 
 

 
 

. 
 

• Jeffrey Johnson, MD 

• Byron Wright, MD 

              3. Reappointment Dr.  Brian Sollers presented the following providers 
for Reappointment:   
 

Richard Unger, DO – Reappointment to 
Active Staff with requested privileges in 
General Surgery effective September 1, 
2022, through August 31, 2024. 

             Katheryn Norris, DO – Reappointment to 
Courtesy Staff with requested privileges in 
Family Medicine effective September 1, 
2022, through August 31, 2024. 

             Flint Orr, MD – Reappointment to Courtesy 
Staff with requested privileges in Internal 
Medicine effective September 1, 2022, 
through August 31, 2024. 
Praveen Korimerla, MD – Reappointment to 
Consulting Staff with requested privileges in 
Cardiology effective September 1, 2022, 
through August 31, 2024. 
Jeffrey Lehr, MD – Reappointment to 
Consulting Staff with requested privileges in 
Cardiology effective September 1, 2022, 
through August 31, 2024. 
Dane Sandquist, MD – Reappointment to 
Consulting Staff with requested privileges in 
Pathology effective September 1, 2022, 
through August 31, 2024. 

A Motion to approve the reappointment and 
requested Clinical Privileges that were 
reviewed and recommended by the 
Department Chair, the Credentialing 
Committee and Medical Executive 
Committee for the following provider was 
made by Commissioner Reams and 
seconded by Commissioner Dietrich.  The 
Motion passed with 6 in favor, 0 opposed. 
 

• Richard Unger, DO 

•  Katheryn Norris, DO 

• Flint Orr, MD 

• Praveen Korimerla, MD 

• Jeffrey Lehr, MD 

• Dane Sandquist, MD 

• Joseph Freeburg, MD 

• Yi Mao, MD 

• Kyle Ogami, MD 

• Kishan Patel, MD 
 

 



 

 

Joseph Freeburg, MD – Reappointment to 
the Telemedicine Staff with requested 
privileges in Neurology effective September 
1, 2022, through August 31, 2024. 
Yi Mao, MD – Reappointment to the 
Telemedicine Staff with requested privileges 
in Neurology effective September 1, 2022, 
through August 31, 2024. 
Kyle Ogami, MD – Reappointment to 
Telemedicine Staff with requested privileges 
in Neurology effective September 1, 2022, 
through August 31, 2024. 
Kishan Patel, MD – Reappointment to 
Telemedicine Staff with requested privileges 
in Neurology effective September 1, 2022, 
through August 31, 2024. 

 
            
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

VI.  FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP                        DISCUSSION                                                                              ACTION                                                       FOLLOW-UP 

      A.  Review Financial  
            Reports for July 
            2022 (Attachment X) 

 

David Rollins presented the July 2022 Financial 
Reports.   
 

A Motion to accept the Financial Reports for 
July 2022, was made by Commissioner 
Dietrich, and seconded by Commissioner 
Bowden. The Motion passed with 6 in favor, 
0 opposed. 
 

None. 

      B. Capital Request Family 
Birthplace Sofa Sleepers 
(Attachment P) 

Merry presented a Capital Request- Family 
Birthplace (4) Sofa sleepers at a cost not to exceed 
$28,303.29. 

A Motion to approve the Capital Request- 
Family Birthplace (4) Sofa Sleepers was 
made by Commissioner Sattler and 
seconded by Commissioner Bowden. The 
Motion passed with 6 in favor, 0 opposed. 

None. 



 

 

 

VII.   SERVICES 

     A. Initial MACC (Attachment 
JJ) (Attachment K) 
(Attachment L) 

 

Craig presented and passed out revised Initial 
MACC documents in place of the previous 
attachments. 

A Motion to approve the Initial MACC, was 
made by Commissioner Bestebreur, and 
seconded by Commissioner Reams. The 
Motion passed with 6 in favor, 0 opposed 

None. 

VIII.  QUALITY                                                                        DISCUSSION                                                                        ACTION                                         FOLLOW-UP 

A. Legislative and Political   
Updates 

Glenn Bestebreur gave a brief Legislative and 
Political Update. 
 
 
 

None. None. 

B.  CEO/Operations Report Craig provided a brief Operations Report based 
upon his written report included in the August 
Board Packet. Craig passed out Legal Manual 
Handbooks to all Commissioners. 

 
 
 
 

None. 
 
 

None. 

IX.  ADJOURN  

There being no further business to attend to, Commissioner Kenny adjourned the meeting at 6:51 p.m. 



 

 

        SPECIAL BOARD MEETING                                                                     September 8, 2022                                                 WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM 

  COMMISSIONERS PRESENT STAFF PRESENT                         MEDICAL STAFF                                              GUESTS 

• Dr. Steve Kenny 

• Glenn Bestebreur 

• Susan Reams 
Keith Sattler  

• Sharon Dietrich, M.D. 

• Brandon Bowden 

• Neilan McPartland 
 

• Craig Marks, CEO 

• Merry Fuller, CNO/COO 

• David Rollins, CFO 
 

 • Adam 
Trumbour, 
Senior Project 
Manager, NV5 

• Kurt 
Broeckelmann, 
Architect, bcDG 

• Brandon Potts, 
Bouten 
Construction 

              AGENDA                                                                                                                                                                                    DISCUSSION                                    ACTION      FOLLOW-UP 

I.    Call to Order  The Special Meeting of the Board of 
Commissioners was called to order by 
Commissioner Kenny at 6:00 p.m. followed by the 
Pledge of Allegiance.   

None None. 

II.   Public Comment No public present. None. None. 

III.  Approve Agenda 
 

Agenda presented for review.  Commissioner Dietrich made a Motion to    
approve the September 8, 2022, Agenda. 
The Motion was seconded by 
Commissioner Reams and passed with 7 in 
favor, 0 opposed. 
 

None. 

IV. Services 

Bid Results (Attachment A)    
(Attachment B) 
 

 A written summary of the bid results was 
provided for review.  Brandon Potts (Bouten 
Construction) and Adam Tumbour (NV5) provided 

None. None. 



 

 

an overview and clarifications as requested.  
 

A. Draft Budget 
(Attachment C) 
(Attachment D) 
 

A draft budget was presented for review and 
discussion (summary and detail). Total project 
cost is estimated at $110,791,288. Value 
engineering is ongoing to reduce the cost of the 
project.   

None. 
 
 
 
 

None. 

B. Draft Schedule 
 (Attachment E) 
                                                                                                              

The draft project schedule was reviewed. 
Although several key elements are pending it is 
anticipated that groundbreaking still will occur in 
2022. 

None. 
 
 
 

None. 

C. GC/CM Contract Update-
Bouten Construction 
 

The GC/CM Contract was not available for review 
at this time but will be provided when the 
MACC/GMP are finalized.  

None. 
 
 
 

None. 

D. MACC/GMP Update 
 

As noted above, value engineering is ongoing to 
reduce the cost of the project.  Approximately 
3M in cost reductions is needed to finalize the 
MACC/GMP.  The intention is to find these cost 
savings without a reduction in the scope of the 
project, although some items may be delayed 
until after the facility is built.  

None. 
 
 

None. 

V. Financial Stewardship 

A. Feasibility Study-USDA (DZA)   
(Attachment I)   

The Feasibility Study was provided for review. 
 
 
 
 

None. 
 
 
 
 
 

None 

Board Resolution #1069-USDA 
(Attachment J) 
 

Board Resolution #1069-USDA was provided for 
review and discussion.  The resolution authorizes 
Craig Marks, CEO and David Rollins, CFO to 
prepare, execute and deliver the USD 
applications, and to execute and deliver the USDA 
documents. 

Commissioner Bestebreur made a Motion 
to approve the Board Resolution #1069. 
The Motion was seconded by 
Commissioner Dietrich and passed with 7 in 
favor, 0 opposed. 
 

None. 

VI. ADJOURN 

There being no further business to attend to, Commissioner Kenny adjourned the meeting at 7:00 p.m. 



 

JOINT CONFERENCE COMMITTEE                                                   September 21, 2022                                                  VINEYARD CONFERENCE ROOM 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT NON-MEMBERS PRESENT 

• Commissioner S. Reams 

• Commissioner S. Kenny 

• Commissioner Dr. S. Dietrich 

• C. Marks, CEO 

• Dr. D. Carl 

• Dr. B. Sollers 
 

• K. Mellema, CQO, CCO 

• M. Fuller, CNO/COO 

• Dr. S. Hashmi 
 
 

     AGENDA ITEM                                                                                DISCUSSION                                            RECOMMENDATION            FOLLOW-UP 

CALL TO ORDER  Meeting was called to order by Commissioner Reams at 7:03 am 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES July 2022 (August meeting had been canceled) minutes were 
reviewed and approved by the Committee.  

For informational 
purposes only. 

Standing 
agenda item. 

PATIENT LOYALTY 

Patient Satisfaction Data M. Fuller reported that YTD for the ER is at 88.1% which is better 
than yearend last year at 84%.   Comments for Acute Care have 
been reviewed to see if there is a common theme and what we are 
finding is the most complaints are around moving patients multiple 
times during their visit due to needing beds which we are actively 
working on to resolve such as cohorting patients right away rather 
than waiting and avoid moving them at night.   Luckily, we have not 
had a staffing issue like some hospitals are having. 

For informational 
purposes only. 

Standing 
agenda item. 

Nurse Educator Update M. Fuller reported about expanding our nurse educator position.  
Marla Davis has moved to the clinic side for her RN role and has a 
passion for patient education.  We currently have one nurse 
educator that focuses on Medicare Wellness checks in Prosser Clinic 
and a second nurse educator was hired for Benton City Clinic.  Now 
we are looking to hire a third nurse educator for the Grandview 

For informational 
purposes only. 

No necessary 
follow up. 



Clinic.  We have recently recruited a per diem nurse Diabetic 
Educator which is focusing on gestational diabetes at the Women’s 
Health Clinic.   We do have an in-house dietician now.  The goal 
with putting this program together with nurse educators, a diabetic 
educator and a dietician is to have consistent messaging between 
inpatient and outpatient areas. 

SERVICES 

Replacement Facility 
Update C. Marks reported that we have received an approved Certificate of 

Need (CN) as of September 19, 2022.  Based on this CN, we have 
two years to begin construction of our project.  

We continue to work with the Sunnyside Valley Irrigation District 
(SVID) on burying the overflow irrigation canal that runs through 
our property. We are currently surveying a potential easement on 
the west and southern borders of our property that would be used 
to bury the pipe. We hope to complete this in between irrigation 
seasons (October- March) if we can work out all the details with 
SVID.  

We have also submitted an application to the City of Prosser to 
begin the process to create a development agreement for any 
improvements that need to be made to or along Gap Road. At this 
time, we do not have any estimate of how long this process will 
take.  

The design team continues to work with the DOH, USDA and the 
City of Prosser on their review of our construction documents. We 
continue to struggle with the DOH as the person in charge of our 
review has left the DOH and has not been replaced. We hope to 
have an update from the DOH at the September Board Work 
Session.   

The final design item we are currently working on is to schedule a 
furniture fair at PMH for staff to try out various pieces of furniture 
that were picked-out at the Merchandise Mart in Chicago. The fair 
will be held the first week of November and will enable our staff to 
test furniture and give their feedback so that changes can be made 
if necessary. 
 

For informational 
purposes only. 

Standing 
agenda item. 
 
 



The construction budget is $3 million high on construction cost.  
The value engineering log has some additional things that can be 
removed to save on some dollars out of the project.  We are 
currently within $500,000 of goal.  Bouten has agreed to look at 
their numbers as well.  Some items that will be removed is the 
helipad which is $70,000.  The outbuilding which is $454,052 and 
the pneumatic tube system which is $300,000.  There is 
construction and owner’s contingency money that could be used 
later to build the helipad and outbuilding.  Unfortunately, once the 
facility is built, there is no way to add a pneumatic tube system. 
 
The GC/CM contract will not be recommended until there is a 
MACC.  The schedule is dependent on the DOH and USDA.  We are 
hoping to have an approval from them by end of October and can 
then break ground in November. The current new facility budget is 
$112 million.  The feasibility study is complete.   

Radiology Equipment 
Acquisition 

M. Fuller reported that Aurora and her team have been working to 
evaluate proposals from the top three CT/MRI manufacturers – 
Phillips, GE and Siemens. We have budgeted for $2 million to 
replace them.  GE is coming in significantly lower at approximately 
$1.8 million.  It is also important to note that this equipment will 
not be delivered and set up until our new facility is completed.  
Knowing ahead of time what equipment we will be purchasing 
allows the design team to complete the drawings for the space 
where this equipment will be going. 

For informational 
purposes only. 

No follow up 
necessary. 

MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT 

Medical Staff 
Recruitment 

Dr. Sollers reported that we are actively trying to recruit Internal 
Medicine.  We have had one physician interview and will be having 
a second in the near future.   
 
We have had a few PM&R physician interviews but have not yet 
found one.   
 
There is still a need in our Orthopedic program.  Dr. Kelly was 
supposed to start in 2023 but has taken a job in Indiana.  We are 
currently working with a recruitment firm for orthopedics.  Ideally, 
we are looking for someone with sports medicine training.   
 
We are close to a signature for a second GI physician that performs 
ERCP which will be of great value to the surrounding communities. 

For informational 
purposes only. 

No follow up 
necessary. 
 
 



 
We are actively recruiting for a pediatrician since Dr. cooks will be 
leaving soon.   
 
We are also retooling the Behavioral Health program with Diane 
Hanks leaving soon.  We are looking at an expansion of our 
counseling services as well with a potential partnership with the 
high school.   
 
We have had one ED APC start and another will start full time in 
October.   
 
We are currently working with Merritt Hawkins, a national 
recruitment firm, to recruit for radiology and orthopedic surgery.  
We have several visits scheduled in the near future with physicians 
specializing in emergency medicine, pediatrics, physiatry and 
internal medicine.    

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT 

Employee Engagement 
Activities 

C. Marks reported that the pool party was a success and had over 
400 staff members and family attending.  We are now gearing up 
for Halloween and the Holiday Party which is December 10th at the 
HAPO center in Pasco.  There will be casino night which was a huge 
hit at the last get together.  
 
The Boys and Girls Club had their dunk tank challenge here last 
Friday.  Next year when we have the car wash, we will include a 
Dunk Your Boss Day! 

For informational 
purposes only. 

No follow up 
necessary. 
 
 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP 

Financial Performance – 
August 2022 

C. Marks reported that we ended up with $2.1 million in August 
which is over $2 million in operations.  August was an outstanding 
month.  YTD we are just under $8 million in profit.  We continue to 
have high revenue and expenses have remained inline.  There was 
$7 million recognized as PPP money last year.  YTD if you pull out 
both years’ worth of covid relief money, we are outperforming last 
year.   

For informational 
purposes only. 

Standing 
agenda item. 

Hospital Financial 
Struggles 
 

C. Marks shared an article from the Yakima Herald entitled “Yakima 
Valley Memorial Hospital lost millions during first part of 2022.”  
This article talks about how all the other hospitals in the area have 
lost significant money.  However, the article also states that Prosser 

For informational 
purposes only. 

Standing 
agenda item. 



Memorial Health had a positive total margin of roughly $2.5 million 
I the first quarter and basically matched it in the second quarter 
with a year-to-date surplus of $5,139,071  

ADJOURNMENT & NEXT SCHEDULED MEETING 

Meeting adjourned at 0839 

Next scheduled meeting 10/19/2022 

 

K. Mellema 9/22/2022 



September 26, 2022 Finance Committee  

 

 

 

 

 

 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
Monday – September 26, 2022,  

7:00 a.m. – Vineyard Conference Room 
AGENDA 

 MEMBERS:          STAFF: 
 Keith Sattler         Craig Marks 
 Neilan McPartland        David Rollins  
 Brandon Bowden        Stephanie Titus 
                   
 CALL TO ORDER 
 
         I.   APPROVE MINUTES 

Action Requested – August 22, 2022, Minutes 

 

       II.    FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP 
              A.  Review Financials – August 2022 (Attachment V )                                                            David 
                    Action Requested – August 2022 Financial Statements 
          
              B.  Review Accounts Receivable and Cash Goal                                    David 
 
   
              C.  Voucher Lists                                                                                                                                                 
                   Action Requested – Voucher List - Payroll and AP Vouchers # 167133 through #167839               David 
                   Dated 08-18-22 through 09-21-22 in the amount of $7,808,752.65; 
                   Surplus Item Resolution # 1070: (4) Sleeper Sofas.   
              
 
      
        III.  ADJOURN  

  

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

            FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING  August 22, 2022                                    VINEYARD CONFERENCE ROOM 

                    
GUESTS 

• Keith Sattler 

• Neilan McPartland - absent 

• Brandon Bowden  
 
 

• Craig Marks, CEO 

• David Rollins, CFO 

• Stephanie Titus, Director of Finance Operations 
 
 

  

                     AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION FOLLOW-UP 

  I.  CALL TO ORDER Keith Sattler called the meeting to order at 7:08 a.m.  
 
 

 

II.   APPROVE MINUTES  
 

A motion to approve the 
Finance Committee Meeting 
Minutes for July 25, 2022, as 
presented was made by 
Brandon Bowden.  The 
motion was seconded by 
Keith Sattler and approved.   
 

None. 

III.  FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP  
A. Review Financials –  

July 2022 
             (Attachment X) 

David reported Net Income of $533,224 in July and 
Gross Charges were $20,401,148 which was 15% 
higher than budget for the month and 21% greater 

A motion to recommend 
acceptance of the July 2022 
Financial Statements as 
presented to the PMH Board 

None. 



 

 

              than the prior year.  Net Operating Revenue came in 
at $7,184,353 (0% over budget).   
 
Expenses were $6,701,566 in July and 1% under 
budget driven by lower professional fees and 
Purchased Services than budget.  Surgeries were 284 
vs 191 budget and ER visits were 1,384 vs 1,104 
budget. 
 
Cash Flow was $311,339 for the month and $696,535 
YTD.  AR stayed at a net 55 days overall. 
 
Continued to discuss and show progress in Revenue 
Cycle to reduce Days in AR > 90 as well as overall AR. 
 

of Commissioners was made 
by Brandon Bowden. The 
motion was seconded by 
Keith Sattler and approved.   

      B.  Review Accounts Receivable  
            and Cash Goal  
 

AR stayed at 55 net days overall as Collections were a 
record $7,574,080 but goal was $8,086,048.  POS 
collections were $67,561 exceeding a budget of 
$15,000 and prior year $12,115.  POS collections YTD 
are $279,278 versus $105,000 budget and $116,100 
prior year. 
 
 

None. None. 

     C.  Voucher Lists  
           Payroll and AP Vouchers 
           #166480 through #167132 
           Dated 07-21-22 through   
           08-17-22 in the amount of  
           $6,446,637.88.  
            
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A motion to recommend 
acceptance of the July 2022 
Financial Statements as 
presented to the PMH Board 
of Commissioners was made 
by Brandon Bowden. The 
motion was seconded by 
Keith Sattler and approved. 

None. 



 

 

      D.  Capital Equipment Request – 
     Family Birthplace (4) Sofa     

Sleepers (Attachment P) 

 A motion to recommend 
acceptance of the Capital 
Equipment request Family 
Birthplace (4) Sofa Sleepers 
as presented to the PMH 
Board of Commissioners was 
made by Brandon Bowden. 
The motion was seconded by 
Keith Sattler and approved. 

 

IV.  ADJOURN       

Having declared no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:55 am. 

 



MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

  PROSSER MEMORIAL HEALTH 

FROM:   CRAIG J. MARKS, CEO 

DATE:   September 2022 

RE:  CEO REPORT 

______________________________________________________________________________  

SERVICES 

1.  Replacement Facility Update 

          While we have had our ups and downs the past couple of years as we worked on our 

Replacement Facility Project, we can now see a light at the end of the tunnel, and it does not appear 

to be a train! We have made significant progress on the project and in September we will seek 

approval to move on to the construction phase of the project. The progress we are making is 

reflected in the September Monthly Progress Report from our Owner Representatives-NV5 

(Attachment A); minutes from our last Project Team Meeting (Attachment B); and the project 

schedule for the next four months (Attachment C). To assist in compartmentalizing the project, we 

will continue to use the following areas: Design; Construction/Schedule/Budget; and Financing. 

 

 A. Design 

          It's official, we received our Certificate of Need (CN) from the Department of Health (DOH) for 

the project on September 19th (Attachment D)! Based on this CN, we have two years to begin 

construction of our project. We continue to work with the Sunnyside Valley Irrigation District (SVID) 

on burying the overflow irrigation canal that runs through our property. We are currently surveying a 

potential easement on the west and southern borders of our property that would be used to bury the 

pipe. We hope to complete this in between irrigation seasons (October- March) if we can work out all 

the details with SVID. We have also submitted an application to the City of Prosser to begin the 

process to create a development agreement for any improvements that need to be made to, or 

along, Gap Road. At this time, we do not have an estimate of how long this process will take. The 

design team continues to work with the DOH, USDA, and the City of Prosser on their review of our 

construction documents. We continue to struggle with the DOH as the person in charge of our review 

has left the agency and has not been replaced. We hope to have an update from the DOH at the 

September Board Work Session.  The final design item we are currently working on is to schedule a 

furniture fair at PMH for staff to try out various pieces of furniture that were selected at the 

Merchandise Mart in Chicago. The fair will be held the first week of November and will enable our 

staff to test furniture and give their feedback so that changes can be made if necessary. 



B. Construction/Schedule/Budget 

          Since receiving the results from the final bid packages on August 25, the entire project team has 

been working together to identify potential savings. Our goal has been to identify $3 million in 

construction cost savings. Theses specific savings are detailed in the attached Path Back Log 

(Attachment E). This log meets our goal and includes a variety of savings that will be discussed at the 

Board Work Session. It should be noted that several of these items are alternates that can be added 

back to the project if we have additional funds (unused contingency funds or excess hospital 

funds/equity) at the 60-80% completion mark. As a result of this effort, Bouten Construction will 

present a Maximum Allowable Construction Cost (MACC) of $81.5 million dollars ($74,817,419 plus 

Washington State sales tax) to the PMH Board for approval in September (Attachment F) and 

(Attachment G). Bouten Construction is also planning to donate $150,000 to the PMH Foundation, 

outside of the MACC. In addition, Garrett Electric and Apollo Mechanical have agreed to match this 

donation for a total of $300,000 to be paid over the next three years (2022-2024). Based on achieving 

a satisfactory MACC, GC/CM Contracts with Bouten Construction will also be presented for approval 

in September  (Attachment H). If the Board approves these documents, a notice to all of the 

contractors that were low bidders will go out indicating the project is a “go!” These documents all 

seem quite simple, but a tremendous amount of work has gone into them and everyone on the 

project team is to be commended! Bouten Construction has also developed a detailed construction 

schedule (Attachment I) that will be reviewed at the Board Work Session. The schedule shows 

construction starting in late October/early November (after approval from the DOH and the notice to 

proceed is received from the USDA) and completion of the project in January 2025. The Board will 

also be asked to approve the total project budget of $112,048,033 (Attachment J), which will be 

reviewed along with a detailed project budget (Attachment K) at the September Board Work Session. 

 

 

C. Financing 

       As we learned at our September 8th Board Meeting, the USDA has verbally approved us to 

receive an additional $10 million in the form of a direct loan and $1 million of grant money. This is all 

contingent on their review of our latest Financial Feasibility Study (Attachment L) which looks very 

good. We expect to hear back from the USDA by the end of September. The Board will be asked to 

approve Board Resolution #1071 (Attachment M) in September to authorize the District to move 

forward with the following financings: 

      - $80,500,000 in Direct Loan Financings with the USDA; 

      -  $80,500,000 in interim construction revenue bond anticipation notes with Alliance Bank; and  

            - $5,000,000 in equipment operating lease financing.  



Gary Hicks will be at the September Board Work Session to review the Feasibility Study and the 

recommended financing options and the Board will be asked to approve the Board Resolution at the 

September Board Meeting. 

 

 

 

2. 2023 Strategic Planning 

     It is once again time to begin our Strategic Planning process for 2023. We are currently compiling a 

planning packet that will include external information about the healthcare industry in general and 

specific information about healthcare in rural America. The packet will also contain information that 

will focus on the historical performance of PMH and include projections for the future. With all the 

work we have been doing for the USDA and the Washington State DOH, we will utilize some of the 

same documents to help tell our current and future story. Our focus in 2023 will be to discuss our 

Mission, Vision, Values and Standards of Behavior. It has been six years since we developed them, 

and it is time to review and update them if appropriate. We will also explore ways that PMH can 

continue to grow to meet the growing and changing healthcare needs of the communities we serve 

and to discuss the construction of our new facility. We will also continue to focus on maintaining our 

financial performance, which is critical for the construction of our new hospital. While we have 

maintained and improved our financial base throughout this pandemic, we must continue to grow 

our revenue, control expenses, and conserve cash in order to make a new hospital a reality. 

    Like previous years, the planning process will provide opportunities for everyone in our 

organization (Staff, Board, Medical Staff) to participate; learn more about PMH and the current 

healthcare industry; and provide input about how PMH can continue to grow and improve. The 

planning packets will be distributed directly to you electronically for your review and a few hard 

copies will be placed throughout PMH in the next few weeks. We will also schedule planning sessions 

for Staff, Board, and Medical Staff in October and early November. We hope that everyone can 

attend a planning session, however, for those that are unable, worksheets will be provided to capture 

your ideas so that we can include your input as we develop the 2023 Strategic Plan. I look forward to 

meeting with everyone as we continue our journey to become a Top 100 Critical Access Hospital in 

the country and prepare to build our new facility. 

        

 

 

 

 

 



3. Radiology Equipment Acquisition 

     As we have been planning for our replacement facility, part of that planning was to replace 

equipment that was nearing its end of life. Two examples of that are our CT unit (7 years old) and our 

MRI unit (18 years old). We knew that by 2024 both pieces of equipment would need to be replaced. 

As a result, we budgeted approximately $2 million in aggregate to replace them. Aurora Weddle, 

Director of Diagnostic Imaging, has been working with her staff to evaluate proposals from the top 

three CT/MRI manufacturers- Phillips, GE, and Siemens, including making site visits to see several in 

action. Aurora compiled a matrix for all three companies (Attachment N) and as a result of all their 

research, Aurora and her team are recommending to the Board that we acquire the GE CT and MRI 

units (Attachment O) at a cost not to exceed $2,028,830. The Board's approval of these acquisitions 

will enable our design team (bcDG) to complete the drawings for this space in the replacement facility 

and for us to obtain final costs to build the space rather than using estimates. Aurora and Merry will 

present and explain their recommendation at the September Board Work Session. It is important to 

note that despite the inflation in healthcare, Aurora and her team were able to keep the cost close to 

our budget, good job! It is also important to point out that this equipment will not be delivered and 

set-up until our new facility is completed, and GE will be taking our old equipment as a trade-in, so we 

do not have to dispose of it. 

 

 

 

Medical Staff Development 

1. Medical Staff Recruitment 

        I am pleased to report that with the assistance of Dr. Mitchell Cohen- Gastroenterologist, we have 

successfully recruited Dr. Michael McDonnell (Attachment P) to join the PMH Team as our second 

Gastroenterologist. Dr. McDonnell joins us with many years of experience (and he is originally from 

Minnesota!) Including performing endoscopic retrograde cholangiopancreatography (ERCP). Dr. 

McDonnell will join the PMH Specialty Clinic in January 2023. Please join me in welcoming Dr. 

McDonnell to PMH as we create one of the strongest Gastroenterology programs in the state! Other 

specialties we continue to recruit include orthopedic surgery, emergency medicine, physiatry and 

radiology. To assist us with our recruitment efforts for radiology and orthopedic surgery, we have 

partnered with Merritt Hawkins, a national recruitment firm, and have several visits scheduled in the 

near future. We have visits scheduled in the coming months with physicians specializing in emergency 

medicine, pediatrics, physiatry and internal medicine. It is important to note that we have a very 

thorough interview process including PMH Medical Staff and Leadership, and we are only interested in 

providers that provide high quality care and fit our culture. We have recently rejected several 

candidates that did not fit our culture. I have previously written about the nationwide provider 

shortage, but I recently read an article that indicated that the State of Washington has the lowest 

number of primary care providers per population in the country (Attachment Q). This supports some 

of the challenges we have faced to expand our primary care base. 

    



Patient Loyalty 

1. Dunk Tank Challenge 

     On September 16, Prosser Memorial Health demonstrated how it cares for the youth of our 

community. We hosted the 3rd Annual Boys and Girls Club Dunk Tank Challenge (Attachment R). The 

contest pitted 11 local citizens against each other to see who could raise the most money for the 

Prosser Boys and Girls Club. PMH was represented by Dr. Brian Sollers and me. While Dr. Sollers and I 

both raised significant funds, neither of us could beat Kippy Brown. As a result of his win and the fact 

that we raised over $22,000, Kippy was allowed to pick two of the other contestants to dunk. Kippy 

selected his boss at the Boys and Girls Club, Chris Cisneros, and me, apparently as recommended by 

several community members. Chris and I both survived the dunking and I want to thank everyone 

that supported us and more importantly, the children of our community. 

 

2. Patient Engagement 

     We often talk about our financial success, but even more important is the success we are 

experiencing with our patient satisfaction. In fact, a strong argument can be made that we are 

experiencing financial success because of our patient satisfaction success. Year-to-date our 

composite patient satisfaction score is 93.37% compared to our goal of 92.6% (Attachment S). The 

only areas lagging behind their goals are acute care and outpatient surgery, but they still have time to 

exceed their goal with a few strong months. This overall performance is commendable as we 

experience some of the highest volumes in the history of the hospital. Hats off to everyone that has 

helped us achieve these great results and here's to a strong finish in 2022! 

 

 

Employee Development 

1. Employee Engagement 

    It's official, fall has arrived. Temperatures are cooling and the harvests have begun. Before we turn 

the page on summer, however, we had a great end of summer pool party in August. This year’s pool 

party was the largest we have ever had, with over 400 participants. Outstanding! This was an 

excellent way to bring summer to a close and begin preparing for fall, and the not-too-distant holiday 

season. Our next engagement event will include activities centered around Halloween. These 

activities will include our annual costume contest, chili-cookoff, and a visit from Blissful Bites (local 

donut truck), and Between the Buns (local hot dog vendor). This year Halloween falls on a Monday 

and we will celebrate the holiday on Monday, October 31. Save the date on Saturday, December 10 

for our Annual Holiday Party. This year's party will be held at the HAPO Center in Pasco and will 

include dinner, dancing, and a casino night. Invitations will be coming out soon so please RSVP as 

quickly as possible to assist us in the planning. We're expecting a large group and want to make this 

the best Holiday Party ever! Included in your packet is a copy of the September Employee Newsletter 

which highlights activities at PMH in August/September (Attachment T). 



  

2. Employee Benefits 

         The review of the 2023 Health & Welfare benefits renewal is underway. Our Broker, USI has taken 

the Prosser Memorial Health enrollment roster to the market to get bids from multiple vendors in 

effort to ensure that our benefits offerings are both competitive and fiscally responsible. The open 

enrollment process for 2023 will be performed within UKG (our payroll/ time & attendance system) 

allowing our employees to use existing information and requiring less data entry. With an initial 

review of our existing benefits, we do not anticipate making significant changes to the design (what 

we offer to employees and what is covered), though we do expect rate increases and are eager to 

understand what they will be. We will finalize our benefits decisions for 2023 in late October. 

        Also included with this update is a 2023 Health & Welfare Compliance Requirements update 

provided by our benefits Broker, USI (Attachment U). One of the valuable services provided by USI is 

their support in monitoring and assistance in complying with the ever-changing legal requirements 

around offering Health & Welfare benefits. Not all of the outline requirements apply to the plans 

offered by PMH, many do, and those requirements will be included when introducing the 2023 

offerings. 

 

3. Nurse Educator     

         Our goal this year is to have a Nurse Educator in each primary care clinic, providing one-on-one 

patient education to those patients with challenging medical conditions.  A patient (and support person) 

who understands their medications and treatment plan are much more successful in managing their 

disease and staying healthy.  The nurse educator makes complex information easy to understand and 

takes the time to help patients find personalized solutions to any obstacles they may have.  

The Nurse Educators will also provide Medicare Wellness Visits.  We are currently doing four Wellness 

Visits a day in the Prosser Clinic.  A second RN has been hired for the Benton City Clinic, and we are 

recruiting for the Grandview Clinic.  In addition, we are actively recruiting for a full-time diabetic 

educator.  Our current part-time RN diabetic educator focuses on gestational diabetes in the Women's 

Health Center, but there is a significant need for this expertise across the organization.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
   Financial Stewardship 

 
1. Financial Performance-August 

      
     For the past six months we have exceeded $20 million in gross charges every month and in August 
we set another record with $23.4 million in gross charges (Attachment V). Prior to 2022, our best 
gross revenue month was August of 2021 with $18.8 million of gross charges. This is unprecedented 
revenue growth for PMH and reflects the volume growth we are seeing. In August we exceeded our 
budgeted volume goals in virtually every department, well done! As a result, our gross revenue was 
27% better than our budget and 24% better than last August. After taking out contractual allowances 
and deductions from revenue, our net patient services revenue was $9 million compared to our 
budget of $7.4 million. We then used our final COVID-19 Relief Funds (Attachment W) and added in 
our other operating revenue (nutrition services) for a net revenue total of $9.1 million or 22% better 
than budget. We have now used all our COVID-19 Relief Funds available for 2022 ($1.8 million) and in 
total, used $16.3 million over the past three years. Our expenses were 1% over budget driven by 
increases in purchased labor and professional physician fees, however, considering our revenue was 
27% over budget, this is very good expense control. After adding in non-operating income, our net 
income for the month of August was $2,146,095, 309% better than our budget. 
  
     As we continue to add months like this to our year-to-date totals, our financials continue to get 
stronger. Year-to- date our gross revenue is 12% better than budget. And our expenses are 2% under 
budget, resulting in a net revenue of $7.8 million compared to our budget of $3.8 million. While it 
appears that last year was better, that includes over $7 million of COVID-19 Relief Funds. When the 
Relief Funds are removed from both years, we are outperforming last year. This solid income 
statement performance is also beginning to impact our cash flow where we experienced a positive 
cash flow of $1.5 million in August and year-to-date, we are up $2.2 million. This financial success is 
unusual in the health care industry today as we learn of more and more hospitals struggling across 
the nation (Attachment X). This is also true locally based on a recent article in the Yakima Herald 
Republic (Attachment Y). While we often want to be like others, this is one time when we prefer to 
be the exception! 
 
 
2. PMH Foundation Update 
 
          The 2nd Annual Wine Country Classic was held Friday, September 9 at Canyon Lakes Golf Course. 
We had beautiful weather, 37 teams participate, and 30 volunteers help with the event. It is safe to 
say a great time was had by all, and in the process, we raised $36,000 toward the new hospital 
project! A heartfelt thank you to our sponsors, volunteers, and staff who helped make this a 
successful event! Save the date for the 3rd annual golf tournament Friday, September 8, 2023. The 
location will be announced after our Foundation Board Meeting in October. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Quality 
 
1. Board Policies 

 
     As outlined in our Board Policy, the Board will be asked to review and approve the following four 
policies: a) Patient Safety Improvement Projects (Attachment AA); b) Outpatient Ordering 
Practitioners (Attachment BB); c) Tobacco Usage (Attachment CC); and d) Quality Improvement 
(Attachment DD). The only changes made to these policies were the correction of typos, title 
changes, etc. The Board will be asked to approve these policies in the Consent Agenda at the 
September Board Meeting. If a Board member has any questions regarding these policies, we can 
discuss them at the September Board Work Session. 
 
 

2.  Rural Hospital Decline 
 

           The AHA recently released a report highlighting the variety of causes that resulted in 136 rural 
hospital closures from 2010 to 2021, and a record 19 closures in 2020 alone (Attachment EE). These 
include many long-standing pressures, such as low reimbursement, staffing shortages, low patient 
volume and regulatory barriers, as well as the continued financial challenges associated with the 
COVID-19 pandemic. Recently, expenses for labor, drugs, supplies and equipment have also 
increased dramatically, causing difficulties in maintaining access to care for people in rural 
communities.  

 
     The report outlined several pathways for rural hospitals to achieve financial sustainability. 
Including additional federal support, flexible models of care, decreased regulatory burden, 
partnership arrangements and state Medicaid expansion. In addition, the AHA and WSHA are 
advocating to state and federal governments for relief to rural hospitals before more hospitals close 
and more rural communities are forced to go without needed healthcare services. 

 
 
5. September Board Meetings 
      

          The September Board Work Session (Tuesday, September 27) will include a comprehensive review 

of our replacement facility project focusing on design; construction/schedule/budget; and financing. 

The session will also include the review of several capital equipment acquisitions and an executive 

session. The September Board Meeting will be used for the Board to consider approving Board 

Policies; radiology equipment, a MACC for the Replacement Facility Project a GC/CM contract with 

Bouten Construction Board Resolution # 1071 and a Replacement Facility Project Total Budget. If the 

Board would like any other items on the agenda, please contact me.  

          

 

If you have any questions regarding this report, or other hospital activities, please contact me at 

(269) 214-8185 (cell), (509) 786-6695 (office), or stop by and see me at the hospital.                                                                              



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment A









Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment B

















Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment C





Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment D







Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment E













Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment F







































































Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment G













Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment H















































































































Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment I











Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment J



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment K











Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment L











































































































































Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment M









Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment N























Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment O





























Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment P

























Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment Q

























Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment R



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment S



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment T





























Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment U





































Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment V



























Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment W



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment X







Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment Y

















Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment AA







Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment BB



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment CC



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment DD











Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment EE





















Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment GG


	Board Packet Cover sheet
	09.27.22 Work Session Agenda
	9.29.22 Board  Meeting Agenda
	BOC Work Plan FY2022
	Copy of _2022 PATIENT CARE SCORECARD
	Copy of _2022 Strategic Plan Scorecard
	08.23.2022 Board Work Session Minutes
	08.25.22  Board Minutes
	09.08.22 special board meeting minutes
	9.21.22 JCC Minutes
	09-26-22 FINANCE COMMITTEE AGENDA
	08.22.22 Finance Committee Minutes updated vDR (002)
	September 2022 Ceo Memo
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C
	Attachment D
	Attachment E
	Attachment F
	Attachment G
	Attachment H
	Attachment I
	Attachment J
	Attachment K
	Attachment L
	Attachment M
	Attachment N
	Attachment O
	Attachment P
	Attachment Q
	Attachment R
	Attachment S
	Attachment T
	Attachment U
	Attachment V
	Attachment W
	Attachment X
	Attachment Y
	Attachment AA
	Attachment BB
	Attachment CC
	Attachment DD
	Attachment EE
	Attachment GG



